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 City of Philadelphia 

Procurement Department 

 

 

Addendum No. 1           Date: March 14, 2014 

Concession RFP # C-103-14 

Deadline for Submitting Proposals: April 3, 2013  
 

 

It is the sole responsibility of the Respondent to ensure it has received all addenda to 

the RFP.  The Procurement Commissioner may, in the Commissioner’s sole 

discretion, reject any Proposal for which not all the addenda have been executed 

and returned. 

 

NOTICE 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

 

FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF 

PARKING SERVICES IN THE PHILADELPHIA PARKS 

AND RECREATION SYSTEM 

 
RFP # C-103-14 

 

IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Except as expressly amended by this Addendum No. 1, the RFP is unchanged. Except as 

otherwise defined in this Addendum No. 1, capitalized words and phrases used in this 

Addendum No. 1 have the meanings assigned to them in the RFP.   

 

Part 1 
 

1.1 Please see Exhibit A.1 of this Addendum No.1 for a list of Pre-Proposal Meeting 

attendees who signed the meeting sign-in sheet.  

 

1.2 The City believes that the information and data in this Addendum No. 1 is 

reliable, but the City does not represent or warrant that the information or data is 

accurate.  Potential Respondents are encouraged to conduct their own 

investigations into any matter of concern to them about the Center, the RFP, the 

Concession Agreement, their Proposal, or this Addendum No. 1. 
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Part 2 
 

Section 3.3.1 of the RFP is amended to read as follows: 

 

3.3.1  East Park Regatta Parking includes parking in East Fairmount 

Park for 12 Regattas (rowing events on the Schuylkill River) during the 

spring and fall rowing seasons. A map of the East Park Regatta Parking 

areas and Kelly Drive closures, along with East Park Regatta Parking 

reports from 2010 through 2013, are provided in Appendix 1 of this 

RFP. The City reserves the right to include Parking Services on Kelly 

Drive.    

 

Part 3 
 

Section 3.3.1.7 of the RFP is amended to read as follows: 

 

  3.3.1.7  Concessionaire shall also collect a $2.00 parking 

donation (“Regatta Parking Donation”) for every vehicle that 

parks in the East Park Regatta Parking to help defray the cost of 

regatta operations for the regatta sponsor. The $2.00 Regatta 

Parking Donation is considered a donation for tax purposes and the 

Parking Tax is only applied to the $10.00 Parking Fee. The City 

reserves the right to increase the Regatta Parking Donation.  

 

Part 4 
 

Section 3.3.1.10 is added to read as follows: 

 

3.3.1.10   

 

A. If the City permits the Concessionaire to provide Parking Services on 

Kelly Drive, the Concessionaire shall collect a $18.00 Parking Fee on 

Kelly Drive, and for every vehicle that parks on Kelly Drive, collect an 

additional $7.00 Regatta Parking Donation and a $5.00 payment to the 

City (“Kelly Drive City Payment”). The Kelly Drive City Payment 

shall be in lieu of any payment to the City associated with the East 

Park Regatta Parking revenue share arrangement between the City and 

the Concessionaire as discussed in Section 3.3.1.9 of this RFP. The 

$7.00 Regatta Parking Donation is considered a donation for tax 

purposes and the Parking Tax is only applied to the $18.00 Kelly 

Drive Parking Fee and the $5.00 Kelly Drive City Payment. The City 

reserves the right to increase the Kelly Drive City Payment.  
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B. For the remainder of the East Park Regatta Parking area, the 

Concessionaire shall collect a $10.00 Parking Fee and an additional 

$5.00 Regatta Parking Donation for the respective regatta sponsor.  

 

 

C. The Concessionaire shall collect the Kelly Drive Parking Fees 

through an online parking purchase system consistent with Section 

3.2.4.3 of this RFP. The regatta sponsor shall be responsible for 

collecting the online, paid tickets and directing and parking vehicles 

on Kelly Drive. In 2012 and 2013, the City permitted Parking Services 

on Kelly Drive during one of the twelve Regattas, the Stotesbury 

Regatta. For information on the 2012 and 2013 Stotesbury Regatta 

parking figures, please see Appendix 1 of this RFP.  

 

Part 5 
 

Section 3.3.1.11 is added to read as follows: 

 

3.1.1.11  Concessionaire shall screen incoming vehicles to the East Park 

Regatta Parking area to distinguish between vehicles entering the East 

Park Regatta Parking area for the respective regatta and vehicles entering 

the park for a permitted, recreation activity or to patronize Laurel Hill or 

Mount Pleasant mansions. All vehicles are permitted to enter the East 

Parking Regatta Parking area, but the City wants to make sure 

individuals are being honest about their purpose in parking in the area.  

 

Part 6 
 

Section 6.8.1.A.  is amended to read as follows: 

 

 6.8.1 A. Using Form B, each Respondent must propose an After Tax 

Parking Revenue Percentage Fee to be paid monthly to the City for the 

following Parking Services: 

  

1   East Park Regatta Parking 

1. Eakins Oval Lot Parking 

2. Lloyd Hall Lot Parking 

3. Avenue of the Republic Parking 

 

Part 7 
 

Section 8.2.1.4  is amended to read as follows: 

 

 8.2.1.4 The Proposed After Tax Parking Revenue Fees in Form B that 

relate to the locations listed in Section 3.4 of this RFP shall be assigned 

less weight than the the Proposed After Tax Parking Revenue Fees in 
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Form B that relate to the locations listed in Section 3.3 of this RFP. 

 

Part 8  
 

In accordance with the RFP, the City of Philadelphia conducted a mandatory Pre- 

Proposal Meeting on February 25, 2014.  At the meeting, potential Respondents asked 

questions about the RFP.  After the Pre-Proposal Meeting, some potential Respondents 

submitted additional questions in writing to the City.  This Addendum No. 1 incorporates 

into the RFP the questions from the Pre-Proposal Meeting, questions submitted to the 

City in writing after the meeting, and the City’s written answer to each of those 

questions.  Each of those questions and the City’s answer to them is set forth below. 

 

Question No. 1: Do you charge a $12.00 Parking Fee for every regatta for which parking 

will be managed by the Concessionaire? 

 

City Answer:  Please see Sections 3.3.1.6 of this RFP and 3.3.1.7 as stated in Part 

3 of this Addendum for information that addresses this question.  

 

Question No. 2: It appears that there have been regattas that charge for parking on Kelly 

Drive. Will you charge for parking on Kelly Drive?   

 

City Answer:  Please see Part 4 of this Addendum for information that addresses 

this question.  

 

 

Question No. 3: There is illegal unpaid parking at the Indian Statue and at the triangle 

area near the road to Mt. Pleasant during regattas. Will those areas be policed? 

 

City Answer:  Per Section 3.3.1.2 of the RFP, the Concessionaire is required to 

post “No Parking” signs where parking is prohibited. The Philadelphia Police 

Department may enforce the “No Parking Signs” by issuing tickets to vehicles 

parked in the posted area. The City encourages the Concessionaire to contact the 

Philadelphia Police Department if no such enforcement is taking place.  

 

Question No. 4: How did you determine that 22 parking attendants are required for East 

Park Regatta Parking? 

 

City Answer:   The current parking operator provides a staff of 22 for each 

regatta Parking Service day. Set up and monitoring of no parking areas are more 

extensive than they were in past years.  

 

Question No. 5: At FDR Park there are frequently cultural events at the back of the park 

near the I-95 overpass. How do you handle parking for park visitors during paid parking 

times? 

 

City Answer:  The Concessionaire’s parking attendants at the gates are trained to 
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ask park visitors about the purpose of their visit. Visitors participating in league 

sports should have league permits or be wearing some type of uniform or gear 

indicating they are entering the park for a league sport. Parking attendants watch 

those who state that they are golfing or going to the American Swedish Historical 

Museum. If a vehicle enters the park without making a payment, the Philadelphia 

Police, who are stationed at the gates during the Philadelphia Eagles Parking 

Time, make best efforts to pursue the vehicle and vacate it from the park.   

 

Question No. 6:  Can the Concessionaire enforce the parking regulations at each 

location, rather than the Philadelphia Parking Authority? 

 

City Answer:  The City can discuss that later with the selected Concessionaire, 

but for purposes of your Proposal assume that the City will use the Philadelphia 

Parking Authority to enforce parking regulations at the parking locations, when 

applicable. A court may not consider a Concessionaire’s actions legally 

enforceable. 

 

Question No. 7: Will the Concessionaire select the P&D Machines?  

 

City Answer:  Yes, we will rely on the Concessionaire’s expertise to select the 

equipment that meets the requirements of Section 3.2.8 of the RFP.  

 

Question No. 8: Does the cost of the P&D Machines come out of the Concession Fee? 

 

City Answer:  No, the cost of the P&D Machines is an internal, capital expense 

that you must factor into your Proposal.  

 

Question No. 9: If the Concessionaire begins to operate a paid parking at the Lloyd Hall 

Lot and finds that a 50/50 revenue share is insufficient to cover costs and make a profit, 

can the revenue share percentages be renegotiated?   

 

City Answer:  The City is unable to renegotiate a Concession Fee after the 

Concession has been awarded. Respondents should visit the Lloyd Hall Lot on 

varying days and times to determine the parking volume in order to prepare an 

appropriate bid in Form B to the RFP. If and when Parking Services are operated 

by the Concessionaire at the Lloyd Hall Lot for a year or more, the City will 

consider increasing the Parking Fee to enhance the Lloyd Hall Lot profits to the 

City and the Concessionaire.  

 

Question No. 10: Where will the paid parking spaces at the Lloyd Hall Lot be located? 

 

City Answer:  Please refer to Appendix 2 of the RFP for a map of the Lloyd Hall 

Lot paid parking spaces. Also please note the spaces around the Italian Fountain 

circle and in front of the Water Works complex buildings are licensed for the 

exclusive use of the Waterworks Restaurant from 11:00 A.M. through closing.   
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Question No. 11: Are there currently parking meters at the Lloyd Hall Lot? 

 

City Answer:  There are currently no parking meters at the Lloyd Hall Lot; 

however, parking is currently restricted to two hours and enforced by the 

Philadelphia Parking Authority.  

 

Question No. 12: Since Avenue of the Republic and East and West Memorial Hall 

Drives are City streets, will the City install no parking signs? 

 

City Answer:  If the Concessionaire operates the Parking Services at the Avenue 

of the Republic Parking area, then the Philadelphia Parking Authority will install 

no parking signs and make best efforts to enforce the no parking zones. 

 

Question No. 13: Do we have to accept and operate all Future Parking Service Locations 

listed in Section 3.4 of the RFP?  

 

City Answer:  No, the Concessionaire does not have to operate the Future 

Parking Service Locations. However, Respondents to the RFP must still complete 

Form B of the RFP.  

 

Question No. 14: The last time the parking concession RFP was issued, the Office of 

Economic Opportunity’s (“OEO”) requirements were an issue for one respondent. What 

weighting is being applied? 

 

City Answer:  Please refer to Section 8.2 of this RFP for information that 

addressed this question. For more information on the OEO requirements, please 

see Section 6.5 and Appendix 4 of the RFP.  

 

Question No. 15: Can OEO put an actual range for participation instead of the Best 

Efforts Language? 

 

City Answer:  Due to the nature of this contract opportunity, OEO has 

determined that Best Efforts are the appropriate level of MBE/WBE participation.  

 

Question No. 16: The RFP states the number of required Parking Staff personnel per 

site.  Are security/”porter” personnel who may be employed by a MBE/WBE 

subcontractor included in the Parking Staff count? 

 

City Answer:  Parks & Recreation does not require security/”porter” personnel to 

be part of the Parking Services. The Concessionaire, at its sole discretion, reserves 

the right to hire security/”porter” personnel for the Parking Services.  

 

Question No. 17: Other than on page 12 at 3.3.3.8, there are no other similar “porter” 

tasks listed at any other site except on page 18 with the broad language found  3.9.3. 

where it reads “ Licensed Spaces in good and safe condition”.  What are the “porter type 

of services as in 3.3.3.8 that have to be performed at the other locations? 



Page 7 of 8 

 

City Answer:  The tasks necessary and the number of personnel 

dedicated to those tasks in order to operate and maintain each site in compliance 

with the RFP will be determined by the Concessionaire. 

 

 

Question No. 18: Please provide the actual City minimum wage rates for the types of 

personnel to be utilized for this job. i.e.; Parking lot attendants, Cashiers, Lot/Sidewalk 

Cleaners/Porters/Flaggers etc. 

 

City Answer:  The 21st Century Minimum Wage requirements may or may not 

apply to the Concessionaire. The 21st Century Minimum Wage requires 

employees to be paid at least 150% of the Federal Minimum Wage. 

 

Question No. 19: Is grass/lawn reseeding and/or restoration a part of 3.9.3 where it 

reads; “licensed spaces in good and safe condition”.  Places like the Dell or the Regatta 

for instance, where the public is allowed to park on grass does the vendor have to restore 

the grass after the summer concert season?  Under Section 3.9.4, "...[t]he Concessionaire 

is obligated to repair all damage to Licensed Spaces caused by the Concessionaire or its 

employees, agents, contractors, invitees, or clients and their guests, or otherwise arising 

from the Concessionaire's exercise of its License under the Concession Agreement. 

 

City Answer:  Under Section 3.9.4 of the RFP, the Concessionaire is obligated to 

repair all damages to the Licensed Spaces.  

 

Question No. 20: At sites where the grass or plants etc. may be disturbed after an event, 

is the vendor responsible for re-seeding and/or replanting of disturbed areas? 

 

City Answer:  Under Section 3.9.4 of the RFP, the Concessionaire is obligated to 

repair all damages to the Licensed Spaces. 

 

Question No. 21: Who is responsible for plowing the Licensed Spaces? 

 

City Answer:  Parks & Recreation is responsible for plowing the Licensed 

Spaces. 

 

 

END OF ADDENDUM TEXT; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.
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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT  

 

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF PARKING  

SERVICES IN THE  PHILADELPHIA PARKS AND RECREATION SYSTEM 

RFP C-103-14 
 

I have carefully read Addendum No. 1 to the Request for the Management and Operating 

of Parking Services in the Philadelphia Parks and Recreation System, and I certify that I 

have received all pages listed in Addendum No. 1.  

 

 

 

Name of Respondent 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________  

Signature of Respondent’s Authorized Official  

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________  

Printed Name and Title of Signer        

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Date 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A.1 

 

 

LIST OF ATTENDEES FOR THE PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






